The King’s Arms is situated at the west end of Nevill Street’s north side adjacent to Tudor Street. The present King’s Arms public house is stone-built with brick chimneys slate roof and rendered façade with coat of arms of Charles II in painted plaster. There are irregular sash windows to the main facade. It probably dates from the late 16th century with additions and alterations in the 17th 18th and 19th centuries. It may once have had a timber-frame front.

The building is just inside what was one of the Town wall s entrance gates, in an ideal position for an inn, or coaching house. In the 1950s adjacent old buildings to the south-west of the King’s Arms were demolished and Tudor-Street widened, fortunately some of Nevill Street’s 16th & 17th century buildings have survived. 
The John Wood map of 1834 suggests the King’s Arms was, at that time, two properties extending back from Neville Street, owned by a Mr Jones, with additional blocks against Tudor Street. It also shows buildings to the rear against the town wall divided by a passage from Tudor Street leading to a garden area beyond the King’s Arms.
The OS 1/500 scale first edition map of 1880 shows a brewery behind a public house and the same rear passage–way between buildings against the town wall, although now blocked to the garden area, with access only to the present rear yard. 
The plan development is complicated, by various later additions to rear and differing details to the front-range.

At present the Nevill Street front has a central entry-passage, which divides the building into two units and leads to the rear yard.. Each unit consists of two rooms with differing details. Each unit has an 18th century, storeyed, side-wing projecting to the rear, forming a courtyard space between. The wings each have, or had, back-to-back fireplaces linked to a front range room.. The right side-wing and brewery building continues as a number of extended buildings (much altered) up to the site of the town wall.
The left-unit of two rooms, has two cross-wall post & panel partitions of late-16th century type, one defining the passage-entry retains the mortice for a head-beam to a central doorway. The other partition divides the rooms and has an unusual low, narrow doorway (blocked) towards the front facade, perhaps for a former stair. This partition probably also had a doorway, towards the rear, although the evidence is obscured. Between the partitions is a reused post & panel partition with 18th century plaster cornice and re-used late-17th century ceiling-beams with hollow and roll mouldings, similar to those in the right-unit. The west room has a lateral fireplace, with side-wing to rear, and has probably been extended later, forming an angled stone gable-end wall in-line with Castle Street. The present front wall may have been timber-framed originally, now built in stone and brick, projecting forward from the original eaves line. There are no visible ceiling-beams in this unit, which probably contain joists between partition beams hidden by the plaster ceiling.
The rear wall of the present bars, on each side of the passage is much altered and original features are obscured or uncertain.
The right unit , formerly of two rooms has an entry from the entry-passage by the side of a blocked fireplace to the room. Its east room has a lateral fireplace, which is against the adjoining wing to rear. This unit has late-17th century ceiling-beams for floor-boards without joists, of two types. The small-section cross ceiling-beams with floor-boards over by the entry are medium chamfered with straight/slightly curved stops and fillet. One towards the centre of the right unit has mortice and stave holes, for a former square-framed, wattle & daub partition. The other five ceiling-beams are also small-section with floor-boards over, but are elaborately moulded with differing hollow and roll designs. A later former partition is indicated by a grooved ceiling timber between the two types of ceiling-beam.
The first-floor of both units is reached by a stairway in the south side-wing, which leads to a corridor along the rear of both front units. A room over the ground-floor inner post & panel partition is jointed to a square-framed wattle & daub partition and the tie-beam roof-truss, also formerly for wattle & daub.  This originally provided two rooms over the left unit. The right unit first-floor has an 18th century stair to access the attics.
The roof truss over the left-unit is morticed at the apex, has a tie-beam and morticed collar (removed) with two trenched side-purlins and a diagonally-set ridge. There are three trusses over the left unit and two, over the right unit. A truss in the 18th century right side-wing is similar, but has a lapped collar. The right unit trusses are set higher and the left unit has had timbers added so that the slate roof is level externally. A central stone cross wall has projecting ledge supports for the left unit purlins and ridge indicating it is a later wall, probably replacing timber-framing. These roof arrangements indicate reworking of the roof in the 18th century when the wings were added.
Cellars

A cellar under the late-16th century left unit has three chamfered axial ceiling-beams  and joists supporting the ground-floor, while that under the left unit’s rear side-wing has an 18th century, barrel-vault, built in stone with angled end to south-west. Today, they are both entered from the rear yard into the barrel vaulted cellar which has a segmental vaulted passage leading to the front beamed cellar. This front cellar has a winding rear stone-stair (now blocked) which once led to the yard.  

The barrel-vaulted cellar has a semi-circular arch and is rather high, causing the ground-floor to be raised up in the left-side wing. The position of the left-unit’s cellar, may indicate the 16th century buildings former extent to the south-west, in line and at right-angles with the front’s west end window. The cellar has remnants of a wide doorway (blocked) formerly with steps leading up to Neville Street. Its lintel has a broad inner chamfer with diagonal stops. Flanking splayed openings, which are partly blocked, may have been narrow window openings, later re-used as coal shoots.
The rear wings

The left side-wing of 2 ½ storeys with cellar under was formerly sub-divided under a cross-beam, to provide two rooms, one heated from the front fireplace. It has been extended later to the west. A stair projection to the north provides access to the first-floor. The first-floor was not entered. Another further storeyed unit to east, is probably of 19th century date and it has also been extended to the south.
The right side-wing is of 2 ½ storeys and 2-units The ground-floor room behind the front, has a wide doorway (blocked) from the yard and two roughly chamfered ceiling-beams. This blocked doorway has corner stones to prevent carts knocking lumps out of the wall. It was probably heated from a back-to back fireplace (blocked) behind the present front fireplace. An inserted doorway in the east wall leads to a later square unit (brewing-room) in-line to rear. It has an entrance doorway from the yard, a diagonally set fireplace with hot water boiler in one corner and a raised slab with large slate sink in the other, items probably related to brewing. A gable-end window has been blocked and a further range added, extending up to the town wall . This range has had its roof removed and the floor area raised up. Parts of these ranges were connected to the brewery shown on the first edition OS maps.
Comment and development
The King’s Arms retains fine moulded ceiling beams and early post & panel partitions defining the entrance passage to its rear yard, and is of great interest as an historic town building. However it is difficult to form an original plan, from the surviving evidence.
We can attempt to postulate the following:-

The post & panel partitions and their chamfered posts with door-heads indicate a late-16th century type, with some details similar to the demolished Dukes Inn, formerly in Castle Street (RCAHMWarchive). 

The tie-beam truss, with its square-framed first-floor partition is framed on to the post & panel partition in the left front unit. This indicates the form and height of the original building. 

The surviving partitions and trusses suggest it may have extended for six-bays with a timber-framed front, running from the front cellar end-wall at the south to the present north end with a central passage-entry in its present position. There would have been steps from the street down to a cellar doorway under the left unit..
The right unit may have been rebuilt in stone with extra height for attic bedrooms in the late 17th century or early 18th century. At this time the west end must have been extended towards Tudor Street.
The re-used post & panel partition is probably an inner-room partition, although it is incomplete. Where the re-used moulded ceiling-beam was originally is unclear, but it is similar in form to those in the right unit.

Stone built, 2 ½ storey rear side-wings were then added, probably with provision for stabling. There would have been steps down to the left-side wing to its barrel vaulted cellar, as indicated in the sketch of ca 1800.
Latterly in the 19th century the side wings were extended and added-to, when the brewery was created in these buildings at the rear.
Documentation. 
Information kindly provided by Janet Herrod of Abergavenny museum.
These buildings shown on Cox’s map of 1801, and John Woods map of 1834, are printed ‘ Mr Jones.’
A print of a sketch of about 1800, from “Vanished Abergavenny”, p 30, compiled by Frank Olding shows the Tudor gate and a building with steps down to a cellar doorway, which appears to represent a doorway to the existing barrel-vaulted cellar in the left side-wing. However, internally there is no visible evidence for a doorway.   

An 1881 OS map is the first showing the brewery sited behind the public house. 

A 1903 photo shows the Arms of King Charles II as existing and the name Delafield’s Brewery over the right unit, otherwise looking much the same as today. The earliest reference to the proprietor is John Blashfield, malster and innkeeper from 1822-35.

Betwen 1864 and 1914 Thomas Delafield was the publican. See “Abergavenny in Old Photographs” Abergavenny museum publication.
Visited Geoff Ward & Daniel Jones, 14/03/2007
